
 
 

 
 
MONDAY, 28 MARCH 2022 
 
 

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
 
I HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A VIRTUAL MEETING OF 
THE LICENSING COMMITTEE WHICH WILL BE HELD AT 10.00 
AM ON TUESDAY, 5TH APRIL, 2022 FOR THE TRANSACTION 
OF THE BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE ATTACHED AGENDA.  
 
 
 

Wendy Walters 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
 

PLEASE RECYCLE 
 
 

Democratic Officer: Julie Owens 

Telephone (Direct Line): 01267 224088 

E-Mail: juowens@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

 

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 

 
 

Document Pack



 

 

 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
14 MEMBERS 

 

 
 
PLAID CYMRU GROUP – 7 MEMBERS 
 
1. Councillor Mansel Charles  

2. Councillor Tyssul Evans 
3. Councillor Ken Howell 

4. Councillor Dorian Phillips 
5. Councillor  Susan Phillips 

6. Councillor Eirwyn Williams 
7. Councillor Elwyn Williams [Vice-Chair] 

  
 
LABOUR GROUP – 4 MEMBERS 
 
1. Councillor Suzy Curry  
2. Councillor Penny Edwards 
3. Councillor Amanda Fox 

4. Councillor Andre McPherson 
   

  
INDEPENDENT GROUP – 3 MEMBERS 
 
1. Councillor Irfon Jones 
2. Councillor Jim Jones 

3. Councillor Edward Thomas [Chair] 
  
 
 

MEMBERS SHOULD BE AWARE THAT THEY ARE NOT ABLE TO ASK MEMBERS FROM 
WITHIN THEIR OWN GROUPS TO SUBSTITUTE FOR THEM AT MEETINGS OF THIS 

COMMITTEE 
 

 



 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.   

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS.   

3. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE "B" HELD ON THE 
15TH FEBRUARY 2022  

5 - 10 

4. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE HELD ON THE 17TH 
FEBRUARY 2022  

11 - 14 

5. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC   

 THE REPORTS RELATING TO THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE NOT FOR 
PUBLICATION AS THEY CONTAIN EXEMPT INFORMATION AS 
DEFINED IN PARAGRAPH 12 OF PART 4 OF SCHEDULE 12A TO THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION) (WALES) 
ORDER 2007 AS THEY CONTAIN INFORMATION RELATING TO A 
PARTICULAR INDIVIDUAL.  
 
IF, FOLLOWING THE APPLICATION OF THE PUBLIC INTEREST TEST, 
THE COMMITTEE RESOLVES PURSUANT TO THE ACT TO CONSIDER 
THESE ITEMS IN PRIVATE, THE PUBLIC WILL BE EXCLUDED FROM 
THE MEETING DURING SUCH CONSIDERATION. 

 

 

6. MR MOHAMMAD ASHRAF - HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE 
HIRE DUAL DRIVERS LICENCE  

15 - 18 

7. MR DONALD LYN EVANS - APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF 
A HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DUAL DRIVERS 
LICENCE  

19 - 22 

8. MR MARK EDWARD JOHN - APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF 
A HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DUAL DRIVERS 
LICENCE  

23 - 26 

9. MRS SARAH HELENA HAVARD - HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DUAL DRIVERS LICENCE  

27 - 30 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE B 

 
TUESDAY, 15TH FEBRUARY, 2022 

 
PRESENT: Councillor H.I. Jones [Chair] 
 
Councillors:  
W.T. Evans, J.S. Phillips and J.E. Williams 
 
The following Officers were in attendance: 
R. Edgecombe - Legal Services Manager 
E. Jones - Licensing Lead 
A. Rees - Licensing Officer 
E. Evans - Principal Democratic Services Officer [Webcasting] 
E. Bryer - Democratic Services Officer 
J. Owen - Democratic Services Officer [Note Taker] 
J. Owens - Democratic Services Officer 
A. Eynon - Principal Translator 
 
Virtual Meeting : 10.00 am - 12.45 pm 
 

 
1. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

 
There were no declarations of personal interests. 
 

2. APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE - MCDONALD'S, TENBY ROAD, ST 
CLEARS, CARMARTHENSHIRE, SA33 4JW 
 
The Legal Services Manager briefed all present on the procedure for the meeting, 
which had been convened to consider an application received from McDonald’s 
Restaurant Limited for a premises licence to allow: 
 
Late Night Refreshment Monday to Sunday 23:00 – 05:00  
Opening Hours Monday to Sunday 05:00 – 05:00.  
 
The application had been put before the Sub-Committee, following receipt of 
numerous complaints regarding the operation of the premises in relation to noise, anti-
social behaviour and crime and disorder. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the following documentation was attached to the report:- 
 
Appendix A – The original Review Application; 
Appendix B – Licensing Authority Representation; 
Appendix C – Dyfed Powys Police Representation; 
Appendix D – Environmental Health Representation; 
Appendix E – Other persons Representations. 
 
In addition to the above, a supplementary agenda was published and circulated to all 
parties in advance of the meeting that day to include the following information in 
addition to Appendices:- 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

 

 

1. Additional Other Person’s Representations; 
2a. Amended Environmental Health Representation; 
2b. McDonalds Anti-Social Behaviour Workbook; 
2c. Mc Donald’s Litter Management Plan; 
2d. The Planning Inspectorate – Appeal Decision. 

 
The Licensing Lead referred to his written representations, detailed in Appendix B1 to 
the report, detailing information regarding the application and his response thereto 
including, having regard to the relevant sections of the Statutory Guidance and the 
Council’s Local Licensing Policy.  He advised that the Licensing Authority supported 
the application and the conditions, proposed by the Responsible Authorities; Dyfed-
Powys Police and the Environmental Health Service, as amended. 
 
All parties present were afforded the opportunity of questioning the Licensing Lead on 
his submission. 
 
The Legal Services Manager informed the Sub-Committee that the representations by 
the Dyfed Powys Police (Appendix C) had been agreed and therefore the Police 
representative was not in attendance.  In addition, the representations by the 
Environmental Health Practitioner (Appendix D) had been agreed and therefore the Mr 
Aled Morgan was not in attendance. 
 
The Sub-Committee thereupon received representations from interested parties 
objecting to the application for grant of a premises licence premises licence to allow 
extended operating hours to provide ‘Late Night Refreshment Monday to Sunday 
23:00 – 05:00; Opening Hours Monday to Sunday 05:00 – 05:00 on the grounds 
detailed in Appendix E to the report. 
 
A representation was received by the Local Councillor P. M. Hughes objecting to the 
application, referred to his written representations, as detailed in Appendix E1 to the 
report and highlighted the following concerns:- 

 
 Increase in litter and anti-social behaviour; 
 Potential to become a rat run for boy racers; 
 Increase in traffic movements leading to an increase in noise, air pollution and 

light pollution all of which was predicted to create a public nuisance to all 
residents and in particular those in close proximity of the site. 

 
In addition, Councillor Hughes requested that the Sub-Committee defer their decision 
until after a Site Visit in order to view the lay out of the site and its access. 

 
All parties present were afforded the opportunity of questioning the local Councillor on 
his representations. 
 
Oral representations were received from the following local residents objecting to the 
application referring to their written representations within Appendix E: 
 

 Mrs Jane Jones - as detailed in Appendix E3 to the report;  

 Mrs Wendy Hill (on behalf of Mrs Shirley Taylor) - as detailed in Appendix E4 to 
the report; 

 Mrs Alison Griffiths - as detailed in Appendix E9 to the report; 

 Mrs Ann Morgan - as detailed in Appendix E16 to the report; 

Page 6



 

 

 

 Mr Simon Evans - as detailed in Appendix E17 to the report; 

 Mrs Rhian Owens & Mr Gareth Owens - as detailed in Appendix E19 to the report. 
 
In summary, the main areas of concern were in relation to:- 
 

 The McDonald’s site is surrounded by residential properties and should the 
application be granted there would be an increase throughout the night in:  

 Traffic Movement 
 Noise Pollution 
 Light Pollution 
 Sleep deprivation/Mental Health Issues. 

 

 Should the application be granted it would be detrimental to the well-being of local 
residents. 
 

 The next available McDonalds that is open 24hrs is only 10minutes away in 
Carmarthen and is located in a non-residential area. 

 

 The site was making elderly residents feel vulnerable. 
 

 No/or very little communication has been made between developers and local 
residents. 

 

 Concerns about anti-social behaviour and the potential that McDonald’s customers 
would use private streets to eat their meals. 

 

 The initial traffic monitoring was located in a place that did not include the area of 
Starbuck/Travelodge and therefore was not a realistic representation of the current 
traffic around the site in question. 

 

 The 24hr fast food operation would have a detrimental effect on the health of 
residents and add to the obesity pandemic. 

 

 Concerns of inaccuracies and errors throughout the Noise Impact Assessment 
(D19 of the report). 

 

 An increase of litter in the surrounding area. 
 

 The application would be of no/little benefit to local businesses. 

 Original planning permission was granted on the basis of normal operating hours 
only.  To allow this application would set a precedent for future applications to be 
granted 24/7 status. 
 

 Concern regarding the safety of customers attending the site on foot. 
 

 Have a detrimental impact on St Clears as it was a small residential town with 
minimal infrastructure. 

 

 CCTV – concerns that there was only CCTV in the restaurant and not available in 
the car park or the surrounding areas. 

 

Page 7



 

 

 

 Concerns about what provision would be in place to monitor light/noise pollution. 
 

 A Site Visit prior to the decision being made was welcomed and advocated. 
 
All parties present were afforded the opportunity of questioning each party on the 
representations made. 
 
Mr Charalambides, Counsel for the applicant was afforded the opportunity of 
responding to the points raised, summarised as follows:- 
 

 That this was an application for extended hours only and many of the points raised 
would have been considered in the previously granted planning matters and 
therefore was not appropriate for consideration at this meeting. 
 

 Measures had been put in place to mitigate adverse impacts eg Anti-Social 
Behaviour Workbook, Litter Management Plan etc. 
 

 It was advised that a Site Visit would not be appropriate to the application in 
question and by doing so could encourage local residents to further raise matters 
which would not be in accordance with the statutory licensing guidance. 

 

 Monitoring of light/noise/litter would be carried out by the Franchisee by way of a 
continuous risk assessment.  

 

 Communication with local residents had been undertaken and methods of which 
were explained. 

 

 Should the application be refused, the premises would continue to operate from 
5am to 11pm every day and without any of the proposed license conditions.  

 

 The Police had included the matter of a CCTV provision within its conditions. 
 

 The 3 Responsible Authorities had made their representations, none of which 
were opposed to the application, subject to specific conditions being adhered to. 

 
All parties present were afforded the opportunity of questioning Mr Charalambides on 
his representation and responses. 
 
The Sub-Committee thereupon 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED to retire into private session in order to receive 
legal advice pursuant to Paragraph 16 of Schedule 12 to the Local Government 
Act. 
 
Having regard to the relevant paragraphs of the Licensing Authority’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy and the Statutory Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2000, particularly those identified in the agenda item, and paragraph 2.21, to which 
it had been referred by counsel for the applicants it was: 
 

Page 8



 

 

 

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED, having considered all the evidence placed before it, 
that the application should be granted subject to the licence conditions agreed 
between the Responsible Authorities and the Applicant. 
 
REASONS 
 
In coming to its decision, the Sub-Committee made the following findings; 
 
1. The premises is located on the outskirts of St. Clears close to a busy highway. 
2. The premises and the entrance to the site is close to several residential properties. 
3. The premises forms part of a wider development which has planning consent for 

other food outlets, and a petrol station. 
4. The police and public health services have made representations regarding the 

imposition of licence conditions at the premises which the applicants have agreed 
to. 

5. None of the Responsible Authorities that have made representations have 
objected in principle to the grant of the application. 

6. If the application were to be refused, the premises would still be able to operate 
from 5am to 11pm every day and none of the proposed license conditions would 
then apply.  

 
The Sub-Committee acknowledged that this application was not a re-run of the 
planning application process.  Issues of need and the commercial impact of the 
premises were not relevant considerations under the Licensing Act. 
 
As required by law, the Sub-Committee had attached weight to the views of the 
Responsible Authorities that had made representations and noted that none of them 
believed that it was appropriate to refuse the application. 
 
The Sub-Committee recognised that its decision must be based upon real evidence, 
and that concerns and fears about what might happen if a licence were granted, were 
unsupported by such evidence, were not matters which they could properly consider.  
 
The Sub-Committee appreciated the genuine concerns of local residents about the 
impact that the granting of a licence may have.  However, those concerns had not 
been supported at the hearing by meaningful real evidence of problems at or in the 
vicinity of the premises since it opened. 
 
In the absence of real evidence of problems at the premises since it opened, the Sub-
Committee felt it had no justification for departing from the views of the Responsible 
Authorities.  Therefore, it was satisfied that it was appropriate to grant the licence 
subject to the conditions agreed to between the applicant and Responsible Authorities 
and that those conditions were a proportionate response to the issues identified. 
 
Considering the above findings, the Sub-Committee felt there was no legal basis upon 
which it could justify adjourning matters for a site visit to be held. 
 
 
 
________________________    __________________ 
CHAIR       DATE 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
17TH FEBRUARY 2022 

 
PRESENT: Councillor E.G. Thomas [Chair] 
 
Councillors:  
J.M. Charles, S.A. Curry, W.T. Evans, J.K. Howell, H.I. Jones, B.D.J. Phillips, 
J.S. Phillips, J.E. Williams and D.E. Williams. 
 
The following Officers were in attendance: 
J. Power - Senior Licensing Officer; 
E. Jones - Licensing Lead; 
R. Edgecombe - Legal Services Manager; 
A. Evans - Assistant Solicitor [Observer]; 
J. Owen - Democratic Services Officer [Minute Taker] 
J. Owens - Democratic Services Officer [Observer]; 
K. Thomas - Democratic Services Officer; 
R. Morris - Members Support Officer; 
S. Rees - Simultaneous Translator. 
 
Virtual Meeting:- 10:00 am - 11:25 am 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P.M. Edwards, A.L. Fox, 
T.J. Jones and A.S.J. McPherson.  
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS. 
 
There were no declarations of personal interest. 
 

3. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF 
THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES HELD ON THE FOLLOWING DATES:- 
 
3.1. LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE "A" HELD ON 14TH DECEMBER 2021. 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-
Committee “A” held on the 14th December, 2021 be signed as a correct 
record. 

 
3.2. LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE "B" HELD ON 7TH DECEMBER 2021. 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-
Committee “B” held on the 7th December, 2021 be signed as a correct 
record. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 

 
4. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 

LICENSING COMMITTEE HELD ON THE 15TH DECEMBER, 2021. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing 
Committee held on the 15th December, 2021 be signed as a correct record. 
 

5. GAMBLING POLICY REVIEW 
 
The Committee received a report on the review of the Gambling Policy which 
included the Consultation Document 2021 and revised Gambling Policy –
Gambling Act 2005.  
 
Members noted that the current Gambling Policy, adopted by the authority 
December 2018. The legislation required it to be reviewed at least every three 
years to ensure that it reflected feedback from the local community that the 
statutory objectives were being met.  
 
It was reported that the Authority had liaised closely with a representative of the 
Gambling Commission as well as the licensing sections of, Pembrokeshire, Powys 
and Ceredigion licensing authorities, with the aim of ensuring as far as possible a 
consistent approach to the revised Gambling Policy.  The Authority’s Licensing 
Section in conjunction with the Council’s Legal Department had reviewed the 
policy document in light of the consultation responses. The Committee noted the 
key changes to the Gambling Policy as stated in the report. 
 
The following comments/queries were raised in relation to the report:- 
 

 In reference to one of the key statements raised as a result of the consultation 
exercise and review; “No clear evidence that specific areas of the county are 
suffering with gambling related problems”, it was asked from what source and 
evidence was this statement formulated?  The Licensing Lead explained that 
the statement was formed on the basis of the responses received as part of 
the consultation. 
 

 In response to a query regarding Casino’s, the Licensing Lead explained that 
whilst currently there were no Casino’s operating in Carmarthenshire, there 
was no resolution in place to prohibit casinos in the County at present.  
However, Casinos are only permitted within certain regions of the UK and 
Carmarthenshire is not included on the list of those regions and therefore the 
Authority is not in a position to issue a Casino Licence. 
 

 Concerns were raised in relation to the advertising of virtual/online casino’s 
and that the accessibility of which was an issue for many individuals. The 
Licensing Lead informed the Committee that virtual/online gambling was 
controlled by the Gambling Commission and therefore the Authority had no 
power to control advertising relating to this method of gambling. However, the 
Authority intends to share the concerns raised in the consultation responses 
regarding remote gambling with the Gambling Commission.   

Page 12



 

 

 

 

 In relation to outlets that housed gambling machines, the Licensing Lead 
informed the Committee that in order to protect children and vulnerable 
persons from harm or being exploited by gambling, the authority intends to 
engage further with licensees to ensure that sufficient measures would be in 
place to monitor that under 18-year-olds do not have access to the adult only 
gaming machines. 

 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE CABINET that the 
amended Gambling Policy be approved. 
 

6. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED, pursuant to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by the 
Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007, 
that the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following items as the reports contained exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Act. 
 

7. MR DONALD LYN EVANS - HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DUAL 
DRIVERS LICENCE 
 
The Committee was informed that Mr Donald Lyn Evans of 1 Llwyd Road, 
Ammanford was a licensed hackney carriage/private hire dual driver with this 
Authority. 
 
The Senior Licensing Committee informed the Committee members of the issues 
that had arisen in respect of his license.   
 
The Committee interviewed Mr Evans with regard to the issues raised by the 
Senior Licensing Officer. 
 
The Senior Licensing Officer recommended that Mr Evans’ Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire Dual Drivers Licence be revoked. 
 
The Committee thereupon: 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED to retire into private session in order to receive 
legal advice pursuant to Paragraph 16 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that, in line with the Council’s guidelines, Mr 
Evans’ Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Dual Drivers Licence be Revoked. 
 
Reason: 
 
On the evidence presented, the Committee was satisfied that Mr Evans’ actions 
were reasonable cause to revoke the licence.  

 
________________________    __________________ 
CHAIR       DATE 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information)  (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information)  (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information)  (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information)  (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE "B" HELD ON THE 15TH FEBRUARY 2022
	4 TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE HELD ON THE 17TH FEBRUARY 2022
	6 MR MOHAMMAD ASHRAF - HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DUAL DRIVERS LICENCE
	7 MR DONALD LYN EVANS - APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DUAL DRIVERS LICENCE
	8 MR MARK EDWARD JOHN - APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DUAL DRIVERS LICENCE
	9 MRS SARAH HELENA HAVARD - HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DUAL DRIVERS LICENCE

